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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

TAMPA DIVISION
SHIRLEY BANFILL,
on behalf of herself and all
similarly-situated individuals,
Plaintiffs,
v, Case No.:

WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A., and
JOHN G. ALDRIDGE, JR., P.C. CORPORATION,

Defendants.
/

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
=D AL AN LA LALNT AND DEVIAND FOR JURY TRIAL
Plaintiff, SHIRLEY BANFILL, files the following Class Action Complaint against

WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A. (“Defendant Wells Fargo™) and JOHN G. ALDRIDGE, JR., P.C.
CORPORATION (“Defendant Aldridge™) (collectively “Defendants™), for violations of the Fair
Debt Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1692 et seq. (hereinafter “FDCPA™).
ERELIMINARY STATEMENT
1. Plaintiff brings this class action against the Defendants debt collectors arising
from the routine practice of filing lawsuits against consumers in violation of the FDCPA.
Plaintiff assumed the mortgage since she inherited property as she is not on note.
JURISDICTION AND VENUE
2. Subject matter jurisdiction of this Court as to Plaintiff’s FDCPA claims arises under
15 U.8.C. § 1692k(d), 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1337.

3. In personam jurisdiction exists and venue is proper as the Defendants regularly

conduct business in this district.
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4, Plaintiff is a resident of this district and the alleged violations occurred here. See

28 U.S.C. § 1391.

THE PARTIES
5. Plaintiff is an adult individual residing in Pasco County, Florida and within this
Court’s jurisdiction,
6. At all times material hereto, Plaintiff was a member of each putative class she seeks

to represent.

7. Plaintiff and the putative class members are “consumers” as that term is
contemplated in § 1692a of the FDCPA.

8. Defendant Aldridge is a law firm engaged in the business of collecting debts due or
alleged to be due to others across the State of Florida, and across the United States.

9. Defendant Wells Fargo is also a debt collector. For example, in Oppong v. First

Union Mortg. Corp., 407 F. Supp. 2d 658, 667 (E.D. Pa. 2005), the District Court held as follows:

Wells Fargo qualifies as a debt collector under the FDCPA. Under the facts

disclosed by the snapshot of Wells Fargo within a three-month period, it was
submitted that Wells Fargo originated 410,205 mortgage loans and acquired 141,595
mortgage loans, 89 of which were delinquent when acquired. See Def's Supp. Mem.
of L. {doc. no. 59) at 1. It is those 89 acquired delinquent mortgage loans that
constitute debt collection activity and that must be assessed for their "regularity.”
8Link to the text of the note

Wells Fargo's manager of default servicing, Kristina Nagel, submitted an affidavit
that the snapshot was typical of defendant's mortgage origination and acquisition
activity for the year prior to and after the snapshot period. The snapshot shows that
Wells Fargo regularly conducts debt collection activity within the meaning of the
FDCPA because the company frequently and consistently acquires an estimated 356
delinquent mortgage loans each year. Under the FDCPA, it matters not that the
percentage of those loans in the aggregate of all mortgage loan activity conducted
by Wells Fargo is small. Wells Fargo is a debt collector under the FDCPA because
it frequently and consistently collects or attempts to collect on defaulted loans as a
part of its business activities.

(Emphasis added).
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0. The Third Circuit Court of appeals confirmed that Wells Fargo is a debt collector in
Oppong v. First Union Mortg. Corp., 215 Fed. Appx. 114, 119 (3d Cir. Pa. 2007).

10.  Thus, both Defendants are “debt collectors” as that term is contemplated in
§1692a(6) of the FDCPA.

| A E N

11. A former family member of Plaintiff, deceased, now, left to Plaintiff real property
located in Pasco County, Florida.

12. The original promissory note was executed on August 12, 1999, in the original
amount of $133,000. To help secure the property, Plaintiff, Shirley Banfill, was one of two persons
who executed and delivered a Mortgage dated August 12, 1999,

13.  The subject note was then lost, misplaced, or destroyed, due to no fault of Plaintiff,

14.  The property owners allegedly fell into arrears and Defendant Wells filed a first
foreclosure action. Plaintiff in this case prevailed and the first foreclosure action was dismissed.
A second foreclosure action, attached as Exhibit A, was instituted on May 24, 2016, against a large
number of defendants, including the named Plaintiff in this action, and at least four “unknown
tenants.” Specifically, the defendants Defendant Well and Defendant Aldridge, on behalf of

Defendant Wells, including the following:

DEBORAH HORMERTE, P.0. BOX 652, PORT
RICHEY, FLORIDA AS TRUSTEE AND NOT
PERSONALLY UNDER THE PROVISIONS OR
A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED THE
EIGHTEENTH DAY OF APROD, TWO
THOUSAND ONE, KNOWN AS TRUST
NUMBER 2250; UNKNOWN BENEFICIARIES
OF THE TRUST NUMBER 2250: SHIRLEY
MAE BANPHY; UNKNOWN TENANT I
UNENOWN TENANT 2; UNKNOWN TENANT
3; UNKNOWN TENANT 4;

3
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15.  As a threshold matter, the second state court foreclosure action assesses charges
against borrowers for serving process against “unknown tenants #1, #2, #3, #4”. Such process is
as a matter of law a nullity, making these charges improper and, therefore, a violation of the
FDCPA, including 15 U.S.C. § 1692e(2)(A), 15 U.S.C. § 1692¢(10), and 15 U.S.C. § 1692f(1).
While those charges may or may not appear in the complaint but Defendant did add them to the
loan balance (as discovery will show) as precluded by law.

16.  The state court foreclosure action also falsely claims that Defendant Wells Fargo,
is the “holder” of the Note at issue and, thus, entitled to sue Plaintiff by virtue of possession and
endorsement. Defendant Wells Fargo is not in possession of the note.

17.  Simply put, the certification was false because it claimed the note was attached,
when it was not.  That’s a false statement made for purposes of debt collection.

18.  This false claim of holder status in the second amended complaint in the state court
action Defendants filed on behalf of Defendant Wells Fargo is an FDCPA violation, including a
violation of both 15 U.S.C. § 1692e(2)(A), 15 U.S.C. § 1692¢(10), and 15 U.S.C. § 1692£(1).

19.  Moreover, Defendants made false statements in the Certification attached to the
Complaint, namely that the note was attaqhed to the state court complaint when, in fact, it was not.
Moreover, the “Certification” by Defendants is misleading and deceptive because the person
certifying does not actually view the original note as the certification states. Defendants should,
but fails to, have procedures in place to avoid making misleading and deceptive statements as part
of the certification process. In fact, Defendants procedures are expressly designed to result in false
certifications generally.

20.  Defendants systemically files misleading certifications, in that it leads the least

sophisticated consumer to understand that the person making the certification has actually obtained
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and looked at the physical original note to determine who has possession of the note, but the
procedures and policies of Defendants in creating such certification do not require the signer to
examine the physical original note. The absence of such procedures is evinced by the absence of
even a copy of the note attached to the certification in this case. Misleading foreclosure defendants
about possession of the physical original note is material because it may deter foreclosure
defendants from availing themselves of standing defenses they might raise but for being misled
about possession

21.  Finally, and most importantly, in violation of well-established cases like GMAC
Mortg., LLC'v. Whiddon, 164 So. 3d 97, 101, (Fla. 1% DCA 2015) and the newly decided Florida
Supreme Court’s decision in Bartram v. U.S. Bank, N.4.,2016 Fla. LEXIS 2424, *5-6 (Fla. Nov.
3, 2016), the second foreclosure includes a default date of August 1, 2011. This is a violation of
binding Florida precedent and the FDCPA because the first foreclosure case was dismissed on
October 26, 2012. Per Bartram and Whiddon and its progeny, the default date in the second
foreclosure action must fall on a date after the date of dismissal order of the original foreclosure,
meaningthe second foreclosure should have utilized a default date post-October 26, 2012, rather
than the August 1, 2011, date included in the second foreclosure complaint. Contrary to
Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss Plajntif-f’s First Amended Complaint, Whiddon is not a res judicata
case. This is a violation of the FDCPA, including 15 U.S.C. § 1692e(2)(A), 15U.S.C. § 1692¢(10),
and 15 U.S.C. § 1692f(1).

CLASS ALLEGATIONS

22.  Plaintiff brings this éction on her own behalf and on behalf of a class of persons

similarly-situated pursuant to Fed.R.Civ.P. 23(a), 23(b)(3). Specifically, Plaintiff seeks to have

certified two distinct FDCPA claims against Defendants.
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23.  First, Plaintiff seeks under 15 U.S.C. § 1692¢(2)(A), 15 U.S.C. § 1692e(10), 15
U.8.C. § 1692f(1), against both Defendants to have certified on behalf of a “Florida. Unknown

Tenant Class” consisting of:

All persons in Florida, within the applicable FDCPA statute of limitations
period, Defendant filed a lawsuit against seeking to collect on a debt assessing
charges against borrowers for serving process against “unknown tenants.”

24.  Second, Plaintiff asserts an FDCPA claim against both Defendants for violation of
15U.8.C. § 1692e(2)(A), 15 U.S.C. § 1692¢(10), and 15 U.S.C. § 16921(1), consisting of a “Florida

Lack of Note Class” consisting of:

All persons in Florida, within the applicable FDCPA statute of limitations
period, Defendant Wells Fargo filed a lawsuit against seeking to collect on a
debt without possessing the original note.

25. Third, Plaintiff asserts a national FDCPA claim against Defendant SI for violation
of 15 U.S.C. § 1692e(2)(A), 15 U.S.C. § 1692¢(10), and 15 U.S.C. § 1692f(1), consisting of:

All persons in the United States, within the applicable FDCPA statute of
limitations period, Defendant Wells Fargo sought to collect debts against in
which the “Certification” by Defendant Wells Fargo in which the person

providing the certification signature does not actually view the original note
as the certification states.

26. Finally, Plaintiff asserts an FDCPA claim against Defendant 15 US.C. §
1692e(2)(A), 15 U.S.C. § 1692¢(10), and 15 U.S.C. § 1692£(1), consisting of:

All persons in Florida, within the applicable FDCPA statute of limitations
period, whom Defendant instituted a second foreclosure action following the
dismissal of a first disclosure action in which the default date in the second

foreclosure action precedes the date of the dismissal order from the first
foreclosure action.

RULE 23(2) PREREQUISITES
27. Numerosity: The Classes are so numerous that joinder of all members is

impracticable. At this time, Plaintiff does not know the exact size of the Classes. Based on
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information and belief, the Classes are comprised of at least hundreds of members and are
geographically dispersed throughout the State (and country) as to render joinder of all Class
Members impracticable. The names and addresses of the Class members are identifiable through
documents maintained by the Defendants, and the Class members may be notified of the pendency
of this action by published and/or mailed notices.

28. Typicality:  Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the other Class Members’ claims.
As described above, Defendants use common practices and automated systems in committing the
conduct that Plaintiff alleges damaged her and the Classes. Plaintiff seeks only statutory and
damages for her classwide claims and, in addition, Plaintiff is entitled to relief under the same
causes of action as the other members of the Class. Defendants uniformly breached the FDCPA
by engaging in the conduct described above, and these violations had the same effect on each
member of the Classes.

29, Adequacy:  Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the
Putative Classes, and has retained counsel experienced in complex class action litigation.

30. Commonality: Common questions of law and fact exist as to all members of each
Class. Without limitation, the total focus of the litigation will be Defendants’ uniform conduct and
procedures, whether Defendant violated the FDCPA. Even the appropriate amount of damages is
a common question for members of each of the Classes.

RULE 23(b) PREREQUJSITES

31. This case is maintainable as a class action under Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(1)

because prosecution of actions by or against individual members of the Putative Classes would

result in inconsistent or varying adjudications and create the risk of incompatible standards of

conduct for Defendant.
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32. Further, adjudication of each individual Class member’s claim as separate action
would potentially be dispositive of the interest of other individuals not a party to such action,
impeding their ability to protect their interests.

33, This case is maintainable as a class action under Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)}(2)
because Defendants acted or refused to act on grounds that apply generally to the Putative
Classes, so that final injunctive relief or corresponding declaratory relief is appropriate
respecting the Classes as a whole.

34, Class certification is also appropriate under Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(3) because
questions of law and fact common to the Putative Classes predominate over any questions
affecting only individual members of the Putative Classes, and because a class action is superior
to other available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of this litigation. Defendants’
conduct described in this Complaint stems from common and uniform policies and practices,
resuiting in common violations of the FDCPA.

35. Members of the Putative Classes do not have an interest in pursuing separate
actions against Defendants, as the amount of each Class member’s individual claims is small
compared to the expense and burden of individual prosecution.

36. Class certification also will obviate the need for unduly duplicative litigation
that might result in inconsistent judgments concerning Defendant’s practices.

37. Moreover, management of this action as a class action will not present any likely
difficulties. In the interests of justice and judicial efficiency, it would be desirable to
concentrate the litigation of all Putative Class members’ claims in a single forum.

38. Plaintiff intends to send notice to all members of the Putative Classes to the

extent required by Rule 23. The names and addresses of the Putative Class members are available
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from Defendant’s records.

CLASS CLAIM I - FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT
Violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692¢(2)(A)

37.  Defendants’ above actions violate 15 U.S.C. § 1692¢(2)(A) as to the first proposed
putative class because Defendant is attempting to assess charges against borrowers — including
Plaintiff -- for serving process against “unknown tenants”. Such process is, as a matter of law, a
nullity meaning these charges are improper and, therefore unfair and deceptive and a violation of
the FDCPA.

38.  Defendants violated 15 U.S.C. § 1692e(2)(A) as to the second and third proposed
putative class members by falsely making statements in the Certification attached to the state court
complaint, namely that the original note was attached to the state court complaint when, in fact, it
was not. Moreover, the “Certification” by Defendant Wells is misleading and deceptive because
the person certifying does not actually view the original note as the certification states.

39.  Defendants violated 15 U.S.C. § 1692e(2)(A) as to last proposed putative class
members by falsely making statements suggesting that could collect payments following a prior
dismissal in violation of Bartram and Whiddon.

CLASS CLAIM I — FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT
Violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692¢(10)

40.  Defendants’ above actions violate 15 U.S.C. § 1692e(10) as to the first proposed
putative class because Defendant is attempting to assess charges against borrowers — including
Plaintiff -- for serving process against “unknown tenants”. Such process is, as a matter of law, a

nullity meaning these charges are improper and, therefore unfair and deceptive and a violation of

the FDCPA.
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41, Defendants collectively violated 15 U.S.C. § 1692¢(10) as to the second proposed
putative class members by falsely claiming that Defendant’s client is the “holder” of the note at
issue and, thus, entitled to sue Plaintiff by virtue of possession and endorsement. However, as to
the putative class members at issue here, Defendant Wells Fargo, is not in possession of the note.

42.  Defendants violated 15 U.S.C. § 1692e(10) as to the third proposed putative class
members because by falsely making statements in the Certification attached to the state court
complaint, namely that the note was attached to the state court complaint when, in fact, it was not,
Defendants are utilizing false representations and deceptive means to collect or attempt to collect
debts. Moreover, Defendants are utilizing false representations and deceptive means to collect or
attempt to collect debts because the person providing the signature certifying the “Certification”
page of the state court complaint does rnot actually view the original note as the certification
states.

43.  Defendants violated 15 U.S.C. § 1692e(10) as to last proposed putative class
members by falsely making statements suggesting that could collect payments following a prior
dismissal in violation of Bartram and Whiddon.

CLASS CLAIM III - FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT
Violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1692f(1)

44.  Defendants violated 15 U.S.C. § 1692f(1) as to the first proposed putative class
because Defendant is attempting to assess charges against borrowers — including Plaintiff -- for
serving process against “unknown tenants”. Such process is, as a matter of law, a nullity meaning
these charges are improper and, therefore unfair and deceptive and a violation of the FDCPA.
Defendant is attempting to collect an amount on behalf of Fannie Mae not permitted by law.

45.  Defendants’ above actions collectively violate 15 U.S.C. § 16921(1) as to the

second proposed putative class members by falsely claiming that Defendant Wells Fargo, is the

10
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“holder” of the note at issue and, thus, entitled to sue Plaintiff by citure of possession and
endorsement. However, as to the putative class members at issue here, Defendant Wells Fargo, is
not in possession of the note and, as such, Defendants are attempting to collect an amount not
permitted by law.

46.  Defendants violated 15 U.S.C. § 1692f(1) as to last proposed putative class
members by falsely making statements suggesting that could collect payments following a prior
dismissal in violation of Bartram and Whiddon.

FDCPA PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff requests that judgment be entered for herself and the putative
classes against Defendants, and that this Honorable Court order the following:
A. Certification of this action to proceed as a class action;

B. Award of statutory damages to the Plaintiff and the class as provided in 15
U.S.C. § 1692k(a)(2)(B);

C. Entry of a Declaratory Judgment that the challenged practices herein
violate the FDCPA;

D. Costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(a);
E. Such other and further relief as the court deems just and equitable.
JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff and the putative class members demand trial by jury of all claims so triable.

11
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WY

Dated this Q day of February, 2017.

Wll bmitted,

LUI$ A. CABASSA

Flor{d4 Bar Number: 0053643
Direct No.: 813-379-2565
BRANDON J. HILL

Florida Bar Number: 37061
Direct No.: 813-337-7992
WENZEL FENTON CABASSA, P.A.
1110 North Florida Avenue
Suite 300

Tampa, FL 33602

Main No.; 813-224-0431
Facsimile: 813-229-8712
Email: lcabassa@wfclaw.com
Email: twells@wiclaw.com
Email: bhill@wfclaw.com
Email: mk@wfclaw.com
Attorneys for Plaintiff

12
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Filing # 41908359 E-Filed 05/24/2016 02:47:01 PM

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE SIXTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
IN AND FOR-PASCO COUNTY, FLORIDA

CIVIL ACTION
WELLS PARGO BANK, N.A., CASENO.:
Pléintiff, DIVISION:

vE,

DEBORAH HORMERTE, P.0. BOX 652, PORT'
RICHEY, FLORIDA: AS TRUSTEE AND NOT
PERSONALLY UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF
A TRUST AGREEMENT -DATED THE
EIGHTEENTH DAY OF APRIL, TWO
THOUSAND ONE;, KNOWN AS TRUST
NUMBER 2250; UNKNOWN BENEFICIARIES
OF THE TRUST NUMBER 2250; SHIRLEY
MAE BANFILL; UNKNOWN TENANT i
UNKNOWN TENANT 2; UNKNOWN TENANT
3; UNKNOWN TENANT 4;

Defendants,

Plaintiff, WELLS FARGO BANK; N.A., sues the Defendant(s), DEBORAH HCGRMERTE, P.O.

BOX 652, PORT RICHEY, FLORIDA AS TRUSTEE AND NOT PERSONALLY UNDER THE.

PROVISIONS OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED THE EIGHTEENTH DAY OF APRIL, TWO
THOUSAND ONE, KNOWN AS TRUST NUMEER 2250; UNKNOWN BENEFICIARIES OF THE
TRUST NUMBER 2250; SHIRLEY MAE BANFILL; UNKNOWN TENANT 1; UNKNOWN TENANT
2; UNKNOWN TENANT3; UNKNOWNTENANT 4, and states:

COUNTIMOR :
1. This is' an wetion 1o 'féréciﬁéé a'ir_i_t:;r:gagc_ én real property located in Pasco County,
Florida;and by reason thereof the veriue for this matter is.in Pasco County, Florida,
2. Borrower(s) BLCIR M. FRENCH, deceased, executed and delivered s Protissory Note
(*Note") dated August 12; 1999 in the aviginal principal amount oF$133,000.00. Securing paymenit of
1113:7524708

062:-FLsV3 L L
Electronicaliy Filed Pasco Case # 20‘1;B.CADO17_35:C-MXW33.05!24)'2018 02:47:01 PN
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the Note ELCIE M. FRENCH, deceased, a'n'cl SHIRLEY MAE BANFILL execuied and. defivered u
Mortgage (“Mortgage”) dated August 12, 1999, The Mortgage was recorded on August 17, 1999, in the
Official Records Book 4208, Page 845, of the Pablic Records of Pasco County; Florida, and morigaged
the properly described in ._the‘Mongagg-. ‘Copies of the Note arid Mortgage are attached hereto,

3 “lhe sebject Note has been ihadvertently lost, misplaced or destroyed. Wells Fargo Bank,
N.A. has not pledged, assigned, transferred, hypothiecated or ‘otherwise disposed of the Note, A copy of
the Lost Note Affidavit is attached heiéto afd incorporated by reference.

4. DEBORAH HORMERTE, P.O. BOX 652, PORT RICHEY, FLORIDA AS TRUSTEE
AND NOT PERSONALLY UNDER, THE PROVISIONS OF A TRUST AGREEMENT DATED THE
EIGHTEENTH DAY'OF APRIL, TWO THOUSAND ONE, KNOWN AS TRUST NUMBER' 2250 is
the current owner(s). of the real propeity. which is the subject of the Mortgage.

3. The Mortgage is & Jlen superior in dignity to.any prioror subsequent right, titls;
claim, lien.or interest arising out of mortgagee-.pr-(he;moﬂgagee‘s'predecessors in intetest,

6, A default exists under:the Note and Mortgage as a result of the smounts due wider

. the Note and Mortgage in that the payment.due for September I, 2011, and-all subsequent payments have

not been made,
7. Plainiiff has demanded payment of ks obligation reflectéd by the aforesaid Note
and Mortgage, but despite such'demand, said defaulthas not bésn cuired,
8. All'conditions precedent te the aceeleration of the Note-and Morigage and the
filing of the instant foreclosure complaint have-been ‘performed, have occurred, or have been wilved,
9, PlaintiF declares thie foll amount payable under tie Note and Mortgage 1o bie due.
10,  Plaintiff is: due the.sum of $111,409.91, in principdl under t'l':'e».Notc-and'.’Mor_tga'gc, ‘plus

interest from Auwpust 1, 2011 logether with all sums- that may-be due for taxes, insurance, ‘ascrow

Aadvances, and expenses and costs of suit incliding but not Jimited 1o filing fees, recording fees, title

search and-examination:fees, fees dite for service of process and such other costs-authorized by the loan

documents, by law, and ax may be allowed by:thie Court,

113-7524708
062-FL-V3
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1t. Plaintfl i obligated 1o pay plaintiff’s atlorneys & reasonable Tez for their services,
Plaintiff is.entitled to recover its altorneys” fees under the Note and Mortgage.

12, UNKNOWN BENEFICIARIES OF THE TRUST NUMBER 2250 may have or clain an
interest in the Property that is subject-to this foreclosure action: by-virtue of 2 potential estate interest or
may otherwise claim an interest in.the Pmperty Said interest, however, is either invalid oris subordinate
and fnferior to the lien of Plaintif”s Morigage.

13 SHIRLEY MAE BANPILYL ‘may have orclaim an ‘interest in the Property that is subject
to this foreclosire action by virtise ‘of Mortgage recorded on August 17, 1899 in the Official' Record
Books 4208,.at Page 845 of thie: Public Recofds of Pasco County, Floridu, or may otherwise elafm in

interest'in the Propenty. Said interest, however, is either invalid or is subordinate and fferiorto the lien of

Plaintiff's Morigage.
14, UNKNOWN ‘TENANT 1, UNKNOWN ‘TENANT 2, UNKNOWN TENANT 3,
UNKNOWN TENANT 4 may have or claim ag interest in:the Property that is subject tothis foreclosure

-actioft. Said interest, however, is either fnvalid or i subordinate and inferior ¢ the lien of Plaintilf's

Mortgage,.

WHEREFORE, Plﬁintiff‘;es‘pgqihiﬂy.requests that this Court enter judgment: (a) foreclosing the
Montgage; (b). enumerating all amounts this Court determines die. to Plaintiff puisuant to said Note.and
Morigajge, {c) ordering the ‘Clerk of the Gourt to sell the subjéct property to satisfy the amount due
Plaintill, in whole or part; and {d): 'adjudgin‘g that the right, title a1id interest of any party claiming. by,
through; under or against ‘any Defendant named herehi be déemed’ inferior and subordinate to the
Plaintiff's Mortgage lien and forevér bé barred arig foteclosed; ind:(6) retaining jurisdiction of this Coust
in.this action to-make anyand all further orders and judgmints as necessary and proper; including but not
limited 10 re-foreclosure against any subordinute interest omitted from these proceedings, delcnnining the

amounts owed to any condominium or homeowisrs, "a'sﬁociation, issuance of writ of possdssion dnd the

-eniry of a deficiency, when and if such deficiency is sought, and.only if the parties liable under the Note

bave not been dlscharged in hankrupmy (however no: deﬁcxency will:be sought if the parties liable undor
11137524708
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the Note were subject to an arder allowing PlaintifF or ts predecessorssiacinterest only in rem vefief fromm.
the bankruptey antomatic stay (f) awarding Plaimiff it attomey fees, costs, interest, advances; and (g) for

sich other-and further relief as this Court deems just and proper.

3. Thisisan‘action to ré-establish a lost Note,

16;  Plaintiff incorporaies by. refarence the allegations previously pled asif-fully set
Torth herein including without limitation those:contained in the LostNote Affidavit that is attached hereto,

WHEREFORE, Plaintift respect{uily requeststhat this Court anter judgment: (2) foreclosing the
Mortgage; (b) re-cstablishing the Note, delenmining. the amoint and pature of adeyuate:protestion o be
required by sections 673.3091¢3) and 702:11, Florida Statues (c) enumerating ‘a1l armounts: this Cougl
dotermines due to Plaintiff pursuant to said Note and Mortgage, (d) brdering the Clerk of the Court 1o sell
the subject property to satisfy the amount due Plaintiff, in whole or part; and (¢) adjudging that the right,
title and interest of any parly Elaiminig by, through, widir or against any Defendant named herein be
deemed.-inferior and subordinate to the Pfaiﬁﬁff‘s'-Mdﬂgﬁéé'liéh and forever be barredand foreciosed, and
(£ retaining jurisdiction- of this Court in-this action to maks any and'ail further orders and judgments as
mnecessary-aud: proper, including: but not limited t6 re<foreclosure ‘against any subordinate-interest omitied
from these proceedings, determining the amouiits owed'toiany condominium.or-fiomeowners associution,
issuance. of wiit of possession am:l-_me-.eh'ﬁy\of"a--deﬁcipney;‘-whm and if such deﬁcicx?c.y'is'ss,tmglu. and
only if the parties liable under thie Note have Dot been discharged in banksuptoy (however no deficiency
will be sought if the parties linble under the Note were subject (0 an order allowing Plaintiff or it

11137524708
062 FLA/3
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predecessors-in-interest. only inxem selief from the bankruptcy automatic stay-(g) awarding Plaintiff jts
atiorney. fees, Coils, interest, advances; and () for such other and further relief as this Coun deems just

aird proper:;

YERIFICATION

Under penalty of perjury, I declare that Lhave read the foregoing Verified:Complaint to Foreclose
Mortgage and the facts alfeged therein are tiue and correct (o the best of my knowledge and beltef.

Wells Furgo Bank, N.A,
By:__ < e -‘yé"

Brinted Name:

.Aldridge Pite, LLP

Attorney for Plaintiff(s)

1615 South Congress Avenue

Suite 200

Delray Beach, FL.33445

Phone: 561.392.6391 Fax: 561.392.:6965

v, . Tara Castillo

o, Bark "ok FBN722901 Z0T6.05.24
‘ 14:20:09 -04'00'

‘1113-7524708
062:FL-V3.
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L ) Kyle Phiilip Blazovich ) o t
PEKSONALEY:appearedbeforc me, (the “Affiant™),

who, upon being duly sworn; states oir hit/her oath; under penalty of perjury as foliows:

1. Affiant is a Vice President Loan Décumentation employed by WELLS
FARGO BANK, N.A. (“Wells Fargo™), Servicer,

2. T'am authorized to:make this Affidavit on bohaif of WELLS FARGO BANK,
N.A. Inthe régular performance of my job functions, [ am familiar with business records-
maintained by Wells Fargo for the purpose of servicing mortgagé loans and [ have personal
knowledge of the operation of and the circumstances swrounding the preparation, maintenance,
and retrieval of records in Well's':Far‘g‘o’s record keeping systenis. These records {which include
data compilations, electronically imaged documents, and others) are made at ot near the time by,
or from information provided by, peisons with knowledge of the activity and transactions
refected in'suchi records, and:aré kept in the course;of business activity condicted regularly by
Wells Fargo. Itis the regular practice of Wells Fargo's monigage servicing business to make
theserecords. Unless otherwise stated, T have acquired personal knowledge of all facts set forth
in this affidavit by éxamining these business records,

3 ELCIE M. FRENCH executed and delivered to UNITED MORTGAGE
INVESTORS, INC. acertain Note dated AUGUST 12, 1999 in the-ariginal principal amount of
$133,000.00 with an original interest rate of 8.250%. The Note was secured by 2 Mortgage
executed by ELCYE M. FRENCH AND SHIRLEY MAE BANFILL, the record owner of the
property Jocated at 10129 LAKEVIEW DRIVE, NEW PORT RICHEY, FLORIDA 34654,
dated AUGUST 12,1999, and recorded on AUGUST 17,1999 in PASCO COUNTY,
FLORIDA, in BOOK 4208 AND PAGE 845 AND INSTRUMENT 991041 10.

4. The siibject Note has been inadvertently lost, misplaced of destroyed, Affiant
suites that based on-a review of Wells Fargo’s business records, WE_L’;I;S.EARGO’-‘BA-NK,N.A.
has not pledged, assigned, transferred, hypothecated or otherwise disposed of the Note.

| 5. WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A. isentitled fo enforce the Note:

006-FL-V3




a. The Note was sold, transfeired, étc. with the Mortgage as evidenced by the
following:

i. UNITED MORTGAGE INVESTORS, INC. ASSIGNED THE
MORTGAGE TO FLEET MORTGAGE CORP:

ii, PLEETMORYGAGE CORP. ASSIGNED THE MORTGAGE
TO FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION.

iii. FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION

ASSIGNED THE MORTGAGE TO WELLS FARGO BANK,

NaAc

6. Attached, hereto and incorporated heréin by reference are records showing that
WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A, is-entitled to enforce the 1ost Note, including a copy of the lost
Note with all known endorsements and/or alfonges as it appears in Wells Fargo's records and a
copy of the Mortgage with:assignments,

7. Wells Pargo has made  diligent and extensive seatch of its records if 2 good faith
effort to discover the lost Note in accordance with its procedures forfocating the lost Note,
without success.

a. .Tﬁe'following-areas-,were_smtched.foﬂhe lost Note:
i.  Reviewed origination file
ii. Checkedinternal: Wells Fargo vaiilt
iii.  Checkedwith-Custodian
. Checked box storage records

V. Check with cuiréntand/or prior attorney

8 Wells Fargo hereby dgrees to indeninify and hold harmless ELCIE M, FRENCH
against loss or damage, including principal, interest, and attomieys’ fees and costs, which' may:
Fesult by redson of a third party presenting the Note arid validly enforcing the same against

006-F1-V3
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:" ELCIE M. FRENCH following judgment iri tﬁi"samat_te’rf‘_é_x’idi‘-"béfdfé-*ﬂle_-mnnin_g_ of the statte of
limitations for enforcement of the Note;

008-F1L-v3




" FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT:

WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A.

Sigm XA P R

Nome: ~ Kyle Philiip Biazowch

State of Mitnesota )
County of Dakota }

Sworit and subseribed to before me this ‘S!' day of"

Name___Dereje D Bad’aéia
Notary Public

2014

(Stamp or Seal)

'RM.\!MF v.-wu\ A Lo d AAANNAAT

006-FL V3
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13- Barrower Not Relcased; Earbesrante By Lender- Not o Walver,” Exteoslon of & ot for payeocat.
o modificdtlo of amortization of the; s secksed by.this Seetity Infmmess grantsd by Lisider oy
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s | Ms‘mnuiommd:

st e R, Bkt socepe md g 0 e s ot onsed 13 s Scary
Sigoed; sealed and deliveredin the prescace of:

STATE OF FLORIDA, PASCS, Covaty st
ot Foregoiog lostmumend was ackmowladged belors me s AOUET_L3TH, 1999y

ELCTE X, FPREWCR rnd SHIRTEY. MAF BAETIY,

who B pors muwuwmmw
sm‘m .

; STATE OF FLORIDA, COUNTY OF PASCO
o vt g, ToI5 16O GERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING (S A
; TRUE AND CORRECT COPY OF THE DOCUMENT
SNFILE OR OF PUBLIC RECORDIN TS OFFIGE
WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL THIS,
A8 Y naver A\ 2612
PAULA'S. ONEIL. CLERK & COMPTROLLER

R ItI0 A4
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THIS INSTRUMENT PREPARED BY Bty 1Rz pec: To.n

A

ANDTO BERETURNED TO: /1
DOUGLAS C. ZAHM, P.A., -

DRAIL, WRSGO. CUERR % CONAINOLLER

18820 U1.8. 19NORTH, SUITE 212 ”&ﬁ“ﬁméim 1,;2’72 |

e
Dety Qlerk:

CLEARWATER, FL 33764 oREK

ASSIGNMENT OF MORTGAGE
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:.

Thif FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGCAGE ASSOCIATION, parly of the first part, in-consideration of the
sum of Ten Dalfars (510.00), snd ottier good and valuable considerations, psceived fiom or o beh of WELLS FARGO
BANK. N-A., party of the sccond par, af o before iha ensealing snd delivery of these prosents. the receip tharcof §
herchy acknowledged, doey by grant, baigain, sell, dssign, wnsfer and $6t over uoto e said jasty 6f 2 sscond pan
Unat cortain manigaye, daied Augist 12,1999, made 6y ELGIE M, PRENCH and SHIRLEY MAE:BANPILL, i favor of
LNITED. MORTGAGE INVESTORS, INC,, and regarded in0. R, Book 4208, Pago 845, Public Records of PASCO

County, Florida, upon the re'ilmmg-.dufscﬁm piece ot parcel of 1ind, sinisate and being in sai6 Caunly and State 10 wit:
TRACT 11.0F GOLDEN ACRES UNIT ELEVEN, AS PER PLAT THEREQF RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 15,

PAGE B4, 85,86 AND'87 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PASCO COUNTY, FLORIDA,

velth the note or obligasion describedd i seid mortgags; shd thé ionids die i5d fo becorie dua thereom, ‘This asslgniient
veginusents the writsen acknowledgment of o prior tronsfed; .
TO HAVE AND TO HOLD 1hie same unti the £ald party of the gecond pasi, It legol representalives, sucsossors
adaislgnsforever, . . .
"IN WITNESS WHEREOR, the sild corparaticn hes eamed these presents to be executed in jts, by its proper
efficers thereutmto-duly sultiorized; this Sik diy ol Jifie' A, . 2000,

FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION

STATE OF Soufr Carolina
COUNTY-OF York

iy ey CERTIFY fhal o thls iy Sl e, anoffoer daly avihorized f dhe Sisie aforsald nd'in i
ooty afeeesald, i take acknowledgments persanslly appeared Heeman Sohin Kennerty well knovs to .o b the
ey Loan Docimentalion of FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION, a corporatian, and hatishe
e B executlng the same It précence o wo sutieriBlag wilbesses frecly sad ValsmiaAly uadse autheriy iy
vesied [n himer- by satd comarntion,
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Prepared by and roturn to;

o
Fis

9%

Shapire & Fishran/STEVEN. G. POWROZEK, ESQ. o
5429 Beaumont Center Boulevard

Suite 800

Hi L
s fLy

it . 21 Rec: 10.50
o o.00 ot "om %
83/89701 | Dpty Clerk
Ty BT Py, S55C0 FOUNTY, CLERK
ek 4554 e 138

This area abova this fing is forthe ‘use of recording official .

FLEET MORTGAGE CORP., (*Assignor), C/O Shapiro & Fishman, 5429
Bsaumont Center Bouleverd, Suite 800, Tampa, Florida 33634, in consideration from
FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION("Assigries"), C/0 Shapiro
& Fishman, 6429 Beaumont Center Baulevard, Suite 800, Tampa, Florida 33634, has

granted, bargained, sold, assigned, transferred and set over, and by these presents

does grant, bargain, sell, transfer and set over unto Assignee the following described
Mortgage(s) recorded in ‘the Public Records of PASCO County, State of Florida,

together with the note of obligation described in said Mortgage(s), and the maney due
and to become, due theraon, with interest-as therein provided.

Date of Mortgage: August 12, 1989
Mortgage Recording Date: August 17, 1999
Clark’s File Number:: 99-104110

Book Number: 4208

Page Number: 845

Legal Description:
.. JBACT 11 OF ‘GOLDEN ACRES UNIT ELEVEN, AS PER PLAT THEREOF
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 15, PAGES 84, 85, 86 AND 87 OF THE PUBLIC

RECORDS OF PASCO COUNTY FLORIDA.
Original Mortgagors: ELCIE M. FRENCH AND SHIRLEY MAE BANFILL
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af 2
This Assigriment of Mortgage is made without recourse against Assignor.

F, Assignor has caused these presents to be.executed

re#lderit;
. Name: SHARON M., LITT
Address:

"Vice P

LN .

S viaa
ok AG i

"f,,ffmcmo.\%‘
B\t

(CORPORATE SEAL)
STATE OF proRrmA

COUNTY OF HILLSBOROUGHSS.

I HEREBY CERTIFY, That onthis day personally appeared before me, an officer
duly authorized to admilnlster oaths and teke acknowledgements of the above
referenced’ duly authorized -signatories: of ;FLEET MORTGAGE CORP. « who are
personally known to-me and didtake:an cathrand who'are to me well known to be the.
persons described hereln and who executed the foregoing Assignment of Mortgage
and duly acknowledged before me and executed the same for the purposes therein
expressed as tHe act and deed of sald corporatibn.

nd affixed my offictal
200/

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, | iaye-hereunto sej
sedl, sald County and State, this __|

*NOTARY PUBLIG

Name of Notary: __aopea 1.1RUS
Commission NO. _¢c843064
My Commisslon Explres: _nmie 1. 2003

{SEAL)
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Nationwide Titie Clearing

ghr A dii] A, 19 Npzroh : B?L::mm I!u:. i8.80
P Coor, FU 34883 :
aim HaruoE. FL 3¢ p ) AR A 1 YO

'@19‘5% co jCouTY iumx

ASSICHMENT OF NORTGAGE.

a.ck_nuw;edge_ql the g ' o ;

BANK, ¥A SUCCEISON % mmmmmmmmms, INC. SUCCRESOR
BY MERQER IO PLERT HORTGAGE COXKP,; WAOSE: ADDRESE T8 2210 BIIERPRIEE DRIVE ,
PLORBNCE, §6.29501, (ASSIGNOR), by theSe presents does convey. grant, -sell,
assign, transfer and set over the ﬂescs.ibed :rortgage together with the
certain niorteis) described thhrein ’toget:her with all interest secured !:he*-eby
all liens, and dfy fights e or To becoife due £hereah o WELLS PARGO BANR,.
A, rmoﬂmuss :s 2 HOME - P 3 bRS uoms, IL\SO 28, I'IS SUCCESSORS OR

mms. (ASSIGNEE) . Sa.l.d Hor:gagt was made by aa:u;sr m:. AND ELOTE
M. PAENCH and WS recorded in Officinl Herords of ithe Cleétk of the
CiveuirCourt ¢f PASCO ‘County, Florida, in Bowk 4208 , Page #45 or- Inscr §
.‘9994041.10

upon Etha. p:oper:y aitiated {n gald stare and County as more fully described in
said mortgage.

.. BSST. VICE BRESIDENT
'RISE DRIVE . FLORENCE, St 2650]

L COUN‘I‘Y OF PINELLAS
P{rY that on this. agw before me, aa officer duly authorized in
the Sr.al:e and Cm.r-ty a!’orasaid - cake ackuwlédgmntn pexsonally appeared
MARY 00 #eGOWAN eIl Known €0 me te be the ASET. VICE: PRESIDENT of
WASHIW HU'I‘VM: BaNY .- ?ﬂt{h WASF!NGTON MUTUAL - BANK,. PN succsssoa BY MERGER
0 HASHING‘IW MUM. HOME LOANS INC. SUL‘CBSSD BY I{IERGER 0. !-'LEBI‘ HQ‘RTGAGB
CORE. |, B corporatica, and that s‘ﬂelhe ackaovledynd excouting the saiie ‘freely
and voluntorily under au:‘aors.ry duiy vested- 4in them by Baid carporation and
that the sedl affimad theretn: is the true Corporate seal of sndd corporacion,
wmzsss #y hand AA ef!iclel $68] in the County and State last aforesaid THIS
bl 1y THE YEAR 2007

TARTA :.m;on cennowr No:ary Publ_ic '
Hy commifgion expires: 05756/2009

EON345-9152

S FRMPLY
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MY Dﬁr llcarzr : -"!d.esz

Hopt: 3778 Becr Kol
"PREPARED -BY 1 DIANA ‘ROBLEY E‘ SO IT: 00
LSITED. RORT 1 - X X
; f";f e ::;}s mm: 1ac 173'99 Dpty Ghrt
MY, P | ; ax ml T LIS,
. o tsTeR : :ﬂu
PRRPARED 672 MESK, __gﬂ. m oy 1) 8%t

TRt oo A5vmss b e L For Ricordiig D] v
ASSIGNMEN' OF SECURITY lNSI‘RIMT

KNOWALL MENBY THRSE PRISENTS THAT. UNTYERD MORTGAGE. INVEETORS ORGAAMNIZED AN

BXISTING UNDER TEE LMWE OF THM BIATE QP PLORIDA WITH AN ot;x:g: EOCATED x: 10625: %,
YENTALL DRIVE; XIAKE, VL 33176 party, of the First pasr,
1si eontidénation of the wom of Text: DorLARS (§10,00) wid odier good and: vahuble consideration in faveful ; man:y of the
Umled&aumumhndwdby PLERY mm- CORP. PLORENCE MALL. WITH: 3N OFFICE LOCA
AT 1945 WEET PALMETTO. STHIET, YLORENCE, 8¢ 29501

ﬂreumrdmumhefm ﬂuemumg asciling and delivery of thesepresents, e reenipe. mmwaym*mw.
25 prased, ' 555 '. s fes Mwmﬁbm;pmudnnhm by grant, bargain, sell.
art of it second gun Secuhwmsnummmd

!l.c::u. mmn,asntmmm '-fsamr:mmzz.r. A FINCLE HOMAN

dated AUGUST 12, 1895 and Hizd for.récord.in the. dgrk’s oftice-of the Cireyir:Court oF tha COtTEY
of pasco - “inO.R, Bookm ».on the ollowing deseribed pruperty:

mcruormmmm‘m EI Mmmlﬂ PLAT
BOOK.1S, PAGE A4, 85,86 AND 97 GF TEE F,H'B:.XC -RECORDE 'OF PASCO. comnr‘:.o%m

msemcrwimﬂeﬂmnnblmndmnbdmaidm Trisrmed i the. mo due mxl o becoma due
mmnuiﬂ:imrmmmedlandnwiu " sy

wam-asomm.nmmmmm Of thy seond piart; it sucessicrs and forever, the said
paty of e ﬁrﬁmhnuuuddmm,&mﬁhmmbymom amiulmm saat'to be
umsed.dus____n;z_dayn- ;

'IT'S m:snm Arzem SRREIDRNT

& mm ANDE: T 3T,
) s i 4

3.
) L=
STATE OF FLORIDA Vg VO 8-
‘COUNTY-OF ‘napm }m
mﬁnwhsimmum atknowledged before: melius iy dayof AUGUST, 1999

Y DIARE M. LYNCH, Mstlm ‘J’!Ck
wf UNITED MO mm:sm mee i mn, }Wﬂg\um!}v

-me of producsd a:i&eoﬂﬁunon

£ ] Doc Brvp e, 2nc

T e
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